

BellSouth Interconnection Services

675 West Peachtree Street
Atlanta, Georgia 30375

Carrier Notification SN91086022

Date: February 24, 2006

To: Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLEC)

Subject: CLECs – (Documentation/Guides) - **REVISED** - Update to the BellSouth Local Ordering Handbook (LOH), Version 21.0A, New Local Service Ordering Guide 6 (LSOG 6) and EDI Local Mechanization Specifications 6 (ELMS 6) for Release 21.0, (Originally posted on February 6, 2006)

This is to advise BellSouth will implement the following changes to update documentation in the LOH, Version 21.0A, for ELMS 6, Release 21.0.

CCP Number	Description Of The Change
2325	EEL to UNE Re-Termination uses ACT V / LNA V (LSP fields): Added the LSP fields (LSP AUTH, LSP AUTH NAME, LSP AUTH DATE) to align what is already available for the products that can be ordered via EEL to UNE. Also: Added PROJECT field (Required row) and DFDT field (Optional row) ACT=V LSR R/C/O table.
2328	RPON field (LSR Form/Screen): Update Business Rule to read. "Rule 11: "The same due date and location must apply to all related PONS except when the REQ TYP is E or M and the LSR involves a partial move of lines to a different address and the telephone numbers are being reused at the new location in this case the address does not have to be the same. If the telephones numbers are to be reused as REQ TYP F 4 Wire ISDN DS1 Port/UNE PORT then all lines can be moved."
2329	DSGCON - FAX NO. field: The DSGCON - FAX NO. will be updated to add the others "otherwise prohibited" at the end of Note 1. (Also, removing 'Manual' header. This CU Note applies to both manual and electronic processing.)
2332	Update BellSouth Interconnection hyperlinks (LOH-Section 3: Ordering Introduction and General Local Service ordering chapters) to show " http://www.interconnection.bellsouth.com ", which will send user to BellSouth Interconnection Homepage.
2333	Modification is to add instructions for processing NATN field on ACT C. ALSO: Update OTN (PS & RS), MI (LSR) and ATN (LSR) fields. NATN(E) field from O(optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = C only: E - Coin, E - Non-Complex Resale, M - Coin, M- UNE-P/WLP - Bus/Res (Switched Combo Bus/Res), M - RCF and E - RCF Modification is to add instructions for processing NAN field on ACT = V MI = A or B. ALSO: Update EATN (EU), and MI (LSR) fields.

	NAN(E) field from O(optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = V only: E - Coin, E - Non-Complex Resale, M - Coin, M - UNE-P/WLP - Bus/Res (Switched Combo Bus/Res)
--	--

Please refer to the attachments for specific details of the changes listed above.

These changes will be reflected in the next update of the ELMS 6 Release 21.0/LOH Version 21.0B, scheduled to be posted on Friday, March 3, 2006.

A summary of all changes within this document will be listed in the **Summary of Changes** section.

This update can be found on the BellSouth Interconnection Services Web site in the Local Exchange Ordering Guides (LEO) at:

http://interconnection.bellsouth.com/reference_library/guides/html/leo.html#loh

Please contact your BellSouth local support manager with any questions.

Sincerely,

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY KRISTEN E. SHORE

Kristen E. Shore – Director
BellSouth Interconnection Services

Attachments

CCP 2325 Attachment Listed Below

ELMS 6

REQTYP A – EEL to UNE Re-Termination

Service Description

An EEL to UNE-L Re-termination is defined as a disconnection of the UNE EEL circuit and re-terminating/converting the UNE-L portion of the former EEL circuit to the collocation arrangement in the end-user serving wire center (SWC). The existing UNE-L facility will be re-used and must be compatible with the UNE-L to which it is converting

The EEL circuit must be compatible with the UNE-L to which it is converting as follows:

- 2 Wire Unbundled Voice Loop–SL2
- 4 Wire Unbundled Voice Loop
- 4 Wire Unbundled Digital Loop (64, 56 kbs, etc.)
- 4 Wire Unbundled DS1 Loop
- 2 Wire ISDN

The converted circuit will be re-terminated to a collocation arrangement as a UNE-L in the end-user's SWC.

No outside dispatches allowed.

Single Local Service Request (LSR) orders may be submitted for 14 or less circuits.

Project managed orders are always required for 15 or more circuits and must be submitted on a designated spreadsheet.

Please refer to the EEL to UNE Re-termination CLEC Information Package for additional information.

Ordering Forms/Screens

The following chart illustrates the required, conditional and optional forms/screens for ordering this service. Detailed information will follow to assist you in filling out each of these forms/screens.

Forms/Screens

EEL to UNE Re-Termination										
LSR	Hunting	EU	DL	RS	DRS	PS	NP	LS	LSNP	RPL
R		R	*					R		
R = Required C = Conditional O = Optional										

* EFFECTIVE 08/01/00: Listings may no longer be submitted with a REQ TYP A request. Listings must be submitted separately using REQ TYP J. This change will align the manual process with the existing electronic process.

Completing the DL Form/Screen

If directory listings are required, refer to **REQ TYP J** for more information on completing the DL form/screen.

Completing the LSR and EU Forms/Screens

Account level activities (ACT) apply to the entire account. A complete list of ACTs and their definition can be found in the Data Dictionary entry for ACT.

The following chart shows all of the valid account level activities for this service.

Valid Account Level Activities EEL to UNE Re-Termination										
N	C	D	T	R	V	S	B	W	L	Y
-	-	-	-	-	X	-	-	-	-	
"X" denotes valid account level activities. A dash (-) indicates a non-valid account level activity.										

The Required, Conditional and Optional (R/C/O) fields on the LSR and EU forms/screens will be given for every valid ACT code in the **ACT Tables** section.

Completing the LS Form/Screen

The Loop Service (LS) form/screen may be required or invalid depending on the account level activity. Each account level activity has valid Line Level Activities (LNAs). These LNAs determine how, or if, the LS form/screen should be populated. A complete list of LNAs and their definition can be found in the Data Dictionary entry for LNA.

The following chart gives the valid LNAs for each account level activity (ACT) and the associated LS form/screen usage for this service.

If ACT is:	Then LNA is:	And LS form/screen is:
V	V	Required



Attachment
SN91086022

The Required, Conditional and Optional (R/C/O) fields for the Loop Service (LS) form/screen are listed according to the Line Level Activity (LNA) in the **LNA Tables** Section.

RCO Tables

The following tables show the Required, Conditional and Optional (R/C/O) fields on the valid forms/screens for this product. All unmentioned fields are either invalid, not applicable, prohibited or not supported. When fields are populated which are not supported by BellSouth, these not supported fields will be ignored. Populating any other fields may result in a fatal reject or a clarification of the service request.

Please note the following codes:

- Optional fields marked with an asterisk (*) force at least one of the conditional fields to become required when populated.
- Fields used only for manual orders are followed by (M).
- Fields used only for electronic orders are followed by (E).
- For fields marked with a DOUBLE asterisk (**) please refer to the Data Dictionary for clarification.

See the Data Dictionary Section for additional information on each field.

ACT Tables: Reqtyp A, EEL to UNE Re-Termination

ACT= V: LSR

Required

ACNA (M)	ACT (M)	ACTL (M)
AN (M)	BAN1 (M)	CC (M)
CCNA (M)	D/TSENT (M)	DDD (M)
IMPCON (M)	IMPCON-TEL NO. (M)	INIT (M)
INIT-FAX NO. (M)	INIT-TEL NO. (M)	
NC (M)	NCI (M)	PG_OF_ (M)
PON (M)	REQTYP (M)	SC (M)
SECNCI (M)	TOS (M)	PROJECT (M)

Conditional

AAN (E)	AI (M)	APOT (M)
CUST (M)	DSGCON (M)	DSGCON-CITY (M)
DSGCON-FAX NO. (M)	DSGCON-FLOOR (M)	DSGCON-ROOM/MAIL STOP
DSGCON-STATE (M)	DSGCON-STREET (M)	DSGCON-TEL NO. (M)
DSGCON-ZIP CODE (M)	LSO (M)	NOR (M)
PROJECT (M)	LSP AUTH (M)	LSP AUTH DATE (M)
RPON (M)	SUP (M)	VER (M)

Optional

CIC (M)	DFDT (M)	LSP AUTH NAME (M)
EXP (M)	REMARKS (M)	RORD (M)
VTA (M)		

ACT Tables: Reqtyp A, EEL to UNE Re-Termination**ACT= V: EU****Required**

AN (M)	NAME (M)	PG_OF_ (M)
PON (M)		

Conditional

AAI (M)	ACC (M)	CITY (M)
EAN (M)	EATN (M)	FB-BILLCON (M)
FB-BILLCON TEL NO. (M)	FB-BILLNM (M)	FB-CITY (M)
FB-FLOOR (M)	FBI (M)	FB-ROOM (M)
FB-SBILLNM (M)	FB-STATE (M)	FB-STREET (M)
FB-ZIP (M)		LD1 (M)
LD2 (M)	LD3 (M)	LV1 (M)
LV2 (M)	LV3 (M)	SANO (M)
SASD (M)	SASF (M)	SASN (M)
SASS (M)	SATH (M)	STATE (M)
VER (M)	ZIP (M)	

Optional

LCON-NAME (M)	LCON-TEL NO. (M)
---------------	------------------

LNA Tables: Reqty A, EEL to UNE Re-Termination**LNA= V: LS****Required**

AN (M)	ECCKT (M)	LNA (M)
LNUM (M)	LQTY (M)	PG_OF_ (M)
PON (M)		

Conditional

CABLE ID (M)	CFA (M)	CHAN/PAIR (M)
VER (M)		

Optional

CKR (M)
TSP (M)

CCP 2328 Attachment Listed Below**ELMS6****RPON**

Related Purchase Order Number
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the PON of a related Service Request.

Definition Notes

Note 1: The RPON field may be used for relating connect and disconnect service requests, multiple requests for the same location and due date or multiple request for Directory Listings.

Valid Entries

Upper Case alpha (A - Z)
Numeric (0 - 9)
Symbols limited to: period (.), comma (,), hyphen (-) and apostrophe (')

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data Characteristics

Up to 16 alpha/numeric characters

Examples

824Z9

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the NOR field is populated, excluding REQ TYP B Bulk Single LSR Arrangement (Option 2).

Note 2: Prohibited when the ACT is Y.

Electronic

Note 3: Optional for REQ TYP = C, ACT = V, LNA = V when TOS is 1--F, or 2--F.

Note 4: Required when the RCC field is populated.

Note 5: Prohibited for REQ TYP B Bulk Single LSR Arrangement (Option 2).

Business Rules

- Rule 1: All RPONS must be received within a 60 minute time frame.
- Rule 2: If one PON is clarified or rejected, all related PON's will be clarified or rejected.
- Rule 3: If one PON is dropped for manual handling, all related PON's will be dropped for manual handling.
- Rule 4: If the NPT is D (LNP), all related PON's must contain an NPT of D (LNP), except when porting ALL numbers associated with Channelized MegaLink and Primary Rate ISDN services.

Rule 5: Information in the RPON field cannot be changed on SUP. All related PONs must be

cancelled and re-issued.

Rule 6: RPON can not be used to relate a manual LSR to an electronic LSR.

Rule 7: RPON field must contain the same value for each PON throughout the RPON group.

Rule 8: The calculation of the due date for the RPON'd group will be based on the longest interval within the RPON group.

Rule 9: The maximum number of PONs in a RPON Group shall not exceed 15.

Rule 10: The RPON value for each PON in the RPON group must equal the value of the PON where NOR equals 01-XX (e.g. 01-99) , for example for every RPON there must be a matching PON.

Rule 11: The same due date and location must apply to all related PONs except when the REQTP is E or M and the LSR involves a partial move of lines to a different address and the telephone numbers are being reused at the new location in this case the address does not have to be the same. **If the telephone numbers are to be reused as REQTP F-4 Wire ISDN DS1 Port/UNE PORT then all lines can be moved.**

Rule 12: When any PON in the RPON groups does not pass the facility check, the entire RPON group will be returned to the originator.

Rule 13: When RPON and PON do not have the same values the 1st two characters of the NOR field must be greater than 01.

Rule 14: When RPON and PON have the same values the 1st two characters of the NOR field must be 01.

Rule 15: When this field is indicated on REQTP J request, the related PON must also be a REQTP J.

Rule 16: When this field is populated the NOR field must also be populated.

Electronic

Rule 17: When a sup 01 is received on any LSR within the RPON group, the system will automatically generate the SUP 01 for the remaining LSRs within the RPON group whether error free or in clarification.

Rule 18: When a sup 02 is received on an error-free LSR within the RPON group, the system will automatically generate the SUP 02 for the remaining LSRs within the RPON group.

Rule 19: When a SUP 03 is submitted on an error free RPON group of LSRs and the due date is changing as well as other changes, the system will apply the other changes only on the PON on which it is received and apply the DD changes to all PONS within the RPON group by creating a SUP 02 for all other PONs in the RPON group.

Rule 20: When the RPON group is in clarification and a SUP 02 or SUP 03 is submitted, a SUP must be sent on EVERY PON in the RPON group.

Manual

Rule 21: For related LSRs, (i.e.: the RPON field populated, if one LSR has an NPDI value of A, all LSRs

in the related group must have an NPDI value of A).

Rule 22: For related LSRs, (i.e.: the RPON field populated, if one LSR has an NPDI value of C, all LSRs in the related group must have an NPDI value of C).

Rule 23: If one PON is cancelled, all related PON's must be cancelled.

Rule 24: If one PON is updated (SUP), all related PON's must be supped.

***** End of definition for field RPON *****

CCP 2329 Attachment Listed Below

DSGCON-FAX NO.

Design / Engineering Contact Facsimile Number
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the fax number of the design engineering contact.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data Characteristics

Electronic

10 numeric characters

Manual

10 numeric characters (excluding optional hyphens)

Examples

Electronic

9083362980

Manual

908-336-2980

Conditional Usage Notes

Manual

Note 1: Required when DSGCON field is populated, otherwise prohibited.

Business Rules

Rule 1: When the REQ TYP is A, and the information populated in the NC field begins with TY or TX, data in this field is not mapped to a service order.



Attachment
SN91086022

CCP 2332 Attachment Listed Below

Update BellSouth Interconnection hyperlinks (LOH-Section 3: Ordering Introduction and General Local Service ordering chapters) to show "<http://www.interconnection.bellsouth.com>", which will send user to BellSouth Interconnection Homepage.

CCP 2333 Attachment Listed Below**ELMS6****REQTYP E (ACT = C)**

NATN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **C** only

ACT Tables: Reqtvp E, Coin**ACT= C: LSR****Required**

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	PG_OF_ (M)
PON	REQTYP	SC
TOS		

Conditional

AN (M)	ATN	CUST (E)
LOCQTY	NOR	PROJECT
RCC (E)	RPON	SUP
VER	NATN (E)	

Optional

APPTIME-DDD	CNO	EXP
LSCP	NATN (E)	REMARKS
VTA		

NATN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **C** only

ACT Tables: Reqtyp E, Resale, non-complex

ACT= C: LSR

Required

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	PG_OF_ (M)
PON	REQTYP	SC
TOS		

Conditional

ALT-IMPCON-TEL NO.	AN (M)	ATN
CUST (E)	LOCQTY	NOR
PROJECT	RCC (E)	RPON
SUP	VER	NATN (E)

Optional

ALT-IMPCON*	APPTIME-DDD	CNO
EXP	HTQTY	LSCP
NATN (E)	REMARKS	RORD
VTA		

NATN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **C** only

ACT Tables: Reqtyp E, Remote Call Forwarding (RCF)

ACT= C: LSR

Required

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	PG_OF_ (M)
PON	REQTYP	SC
TOS		

Conditional

ALT-IMPCON-TEL NO.	AN	ATN
CUST	LOCQTY	NOR
RCC (E)	RPON	SUP
VER	NATN (E)	

Optional

ALT-IMPCON*	APPTIME-DDD	CNO
DFDT	EXP	LSCP
REMARKS	RORD	

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Spanish (Spain-Modern Sort)

Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Red, Spanish (Spain-Modern Sort), Highlight

Deleted: **NATN (E)**

Formatted: Highlight

ELMS6**REQTYP M (ACT = C)**

NATN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **C** only

ACT Tables: Reqtvp M, UNE-P/WLP Coin**ACT= C: LSR****Required**

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	PG_OF_ (M)
PON	REQTYP	SC
TOS		

Conditional

AN (M)	ATN	CUST (E)
LOCQTY	NOR	PROJECT
RCC (E)	RPON	SUP
VER	NATN (E)	

Optional

APPTIME-DDD	CNO	EXP
LSCP	NATN (E)	PORTTYP
REMARKS	VTA	

NATN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **C** only

ACT Tables: Reqtyp M, UNE-P/WLP Bus/Res (Switched Combo Bus/Res)

ACT= C: LSR

Required

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	PG_OF_ (M)
PON	REQTYP	SC
TOS		

Conditional

ALT-IMPCON-TEL NO.	AN	ATN
CUST (E)	LOCQTY	MEU (M)
NOR	PROJECT	RCC (E)
RPON	SUP	VER

NATN (E)

Optional

ALT-IMPCON*	APPTIME-DDD	CIC (E)
CNO	EXP	HTQTY
LSCP	<u>NATN (E)</u>	PORTTYP
REMARKS	RORD	

NATN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **C** only

ACT Tables: Reqtyp M, UNE-P/WLP Remote Call Forwarding (RCF Switched Combo)

ACT= C: LSR

Required

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	PG_OF_ (M)
PON	REQTYP	SC
TOS		

Conditional

ALT-IMPCON-TEL NO.	AN	ATN
LOCQTY	NOR	RCC (E)
RPON	SUP	VER

NATN (E)

Optional

ALT-IMPCON*	APPTIME-DDD	CNO
DFDT	EXP	LSCP
PORTTYP	REMARKS	
RORD		

Formatted: Font: Bold, Spanish (Spain-Modern Sort), Highlight

Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Red, Spanish (Spain-Modern Sort), Highlight

Deleted: NATN (E)

Formatted: Highlight

ELMS6

NATN

New Account Telephone Number
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the new account telephone number.

Definition Notes

Electronic

- Note 1: This field may be used to assign a new account number when an existing main account telephone number is migrated to another existing account or being disconnected.
- Note 2: This field may be used to specify the new account telephone number for the migrating "to" account.
- Note 3: This field may be used to change the main account number when the LSP is not changing.

Formatted: Level 1, Space Before: 0 pt, Widow/Orphan control, Tabs: Not at 0.13" + 0.75"

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Italic, Underline, Font color: Red

Formatted: Highlight

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

Electronic

- Note 1: The number populated in this field must be a valid telephone number.
- Note 2: When the ACT is V, and this field is populated, it must be either: an existing working number on the ATN account that is not being disconnected; a number migrating to the NATN account; a new number being added with an LNA of N.
- Note 3: When the ACT is C and this field is populated it must be either: an existing working number on the ATN account that is not being disconnected; a new number being added with LNA=N.

Deleted: .

Formatted: None, Space Before: 11.25 pt, No widow/orphan control, Tabs: 0.06", Left

Data Characteristics

10 numeric characters

Examples

2055551234

Conditional Usage Notes

Electronic

- Note 1: Optional when the REQ TYP is E (Non-Complex) or M (Non-Complex) and the ACT is V and the MI field is **B or D**.
- Note 2: Prohibited when the LEAN or LEATN field is populated.
- Note 3: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is E (Non-Complex) or M (Non-Complex) and the ACT is not C or V.

Deleted: .

Formatted: None, Space Before: 11.25 pt, No widow/orphan control, Tabs: 0.06", Left

Deleted: Note 3: Optional when the REQ TYP is E (Non-Complex) or M (Non-Complex) and the ACT is C.

Deleted: 4

Note 4: Required on ACT C when the main number on the account is being disconnected and another number is to become the new main number (ATN), either from the remaining numbers on the account or a totally new number.

Business Rules

Electronic

Rule 1: When the ACT is V and this field is populated the EATN field must also be populated.

Deleted: .

Rule 2: This field must not match entries in any OTN field.

Rule 3: When the ACT is V and the NATN field is populated, the MI field must be B or D.

Rule 4: When NATN is populated, the ATN and NATN fields must contain different

Telephone Numbers.

Rule 5: This field is for LSR's submitted electronically.

Deleted: Rule 5

Rule 6: When the ACT is C and the telephone number populated in the NATN field already exists on the CSR, and no other activity is to occur outside of changing the main account number, the LNA field must be populated with C. When the criteria in this rule is met it is not necessary to populate the FA / FEATURE / FEATURE DETAIL fields.

ELMS6

OTN

Out Telephone Number
PS Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the existing telephone number that is being changed.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data Characteristics

Electronic

10 numeric characters

Manual

10 numeric characters (excluding optional hyphens)

Examples

Electronic

2016690001

Manual

201-669-0001

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the EATN field and the ATN field on the LSR form do not match and the LNA is T.

Note 2: Required when the REQ TYP is M (Switched Combination RES/BUS) and the request is to change from a business to a residence class of service and the end user service address is not in Florida or North Carolina.

Note 3: Required when the LNA field is populated with X.

Note 4: Prohibited when the LNA is L or B.

Business Rules

Rule 1: When the OTN field is populated, the TNS field must not be ranged.

Rule 2: The OTN field must not match the EATN field when the customer is changing from a business to residence and the ACT is V.

Electronic

Rule 3 When the OTN and NATN fields are both populated, the content in the fields must be different.



Attachment
SN91086022

***** End of definition for field OTN *****

(RS Page)

OTN

Out Telephone Number
RS Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the existing telephone number that is being changed.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data Characteristics

Electronic

10 numeric characters

Manual

12 numeric characters (including two optional hyphens)

Examples

Electronic

4045554444

Manual

404-555-4444

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the EATN field and the ATN field on the LSR form do not match and the LNA is "T".

Note 2: Required when the REQ TYP is E (Non-Complex) and the request is to change from a business to a residence class of service and the end user service address is not in Florida or North Carolina.

Note 3: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is E and the LNA is L or B.

Note 4: Required when the LNA field is populated with X.

Business Rules

Rule 1: When the OTN field is populated, the TNS field must not be ranged.

Rule 2: The OTN field must not match the EATN field when the customer is changing from a business to residence and the ACT is V.

Electronic

Rule 3 When the OTN and NATN fields are both populated, the content in the fields must be different.

***** End of definition for field OTN *****

ELMS6

MI

Migration Indicator
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the type of account level activity when lines/numbers are converting from one LSP to another LSP.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

- A = Partial migration converting lines/numbers to a new account
- B = Partial migration converting lines/numbers to an existing account
- C = Full migration converting lines/numbers to a new account
- D = Full migration converting lines/numbers to an existing account

Valid Entry Notes

Note 1: When REQ TYP = J and ACT = V, MI must be C.

Electronic

Note 2: When the valid entry is A or B there must be at least one line remaining (not migrating) on the existing CSR.

Note 3: When the valid entry is "C" or "D" all lines must either migrate, or be disconnected, there must not be any lines remaining on the existing CSR.

Note 4: For the following products the only valid entries for this field are C or D: Digital Data Designed (DS1), NON-Designed UCL-ND, EELs, Line Share, DID.

Note 5: For a Wireless Type 1 Port, the MI field valid values must be A or B.

Note 6: When the ACT is V and the LSR request is changing from a residence to a business class of service, or from a business class of service to a residence class of service the only valid value in this field is C.

Note 7: When the REQ TYP is N with ACT=V and AD=A, the MI must be B.

Note 8: MI field must be B or D when the ACT is V and the NATN field is populated.

Manual

Note ~~8~~ **9**: Valid entries of "A" and "B" are prohibited when the MEU field is populated and the request is for a UNE-P/WLP Complex PBX ON/OFF Premise extension/DPA.

Note ~~9~~ **10**: When A or B is populated in this field and the REQ TYP N, the LSR must be submitted manually.

Note ~~10~~ **11**: Valid entries for LNP to Resale UNE-P/WLP Migration Request (REQ TYP E or M), (SC=LC SL) are A, B, C or D.

Data Characteristics



Attachment
SN91086022

1 alpha character

Examples

A

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the ACT is V.

Note 2: Prohibited when the ACT is W.

Manual

Note 3: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is M and the TOS is 1DM-, 1EM or 1HM.

Note 4: Prohibited with REQ TYP E for Frame Relay, SMARTRing and LightGate.

Note 5: Prohibited with REQ TYP K.

ELMS6

ATN

Account Telephone Number
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the account telephone number assigned by the NSP.

Definition Notes

Note 1: The ATN is a dialable telephone number.

Valid Entries

Electronic

a valid Account Telephone Number

Manual

N = New Account Telephone Number or a valid Account Telephone Number

Valid Entry Notes

Note 1: Hyphens are automatically inserted by the BellSouth electronic interface system.

Data Characteristics

Electronic

10 numeric characters

Manual

1 alpha or 10 numeric characters (excluding optional hyphens)

Examples

Electronic

2015551212

Manual

2015551212

201-555-1212

N

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the AN field is not populated.

Note 2: Excluding REQ TYP B, PROHIBITED when the AN field is populated.

Note 3: When the REQ TYP is B, NPT is D (LNP) and LNLN field is populated, this field is required.

Note 4: When the REQ TYP is C, NPT is D (LNP) and the LNLN field is populated, this field is required.

Note 5: Required when the REQ TYP is J with ACT of R and the EATN field is populated.

Manual

Note 6: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is E and the 4th character of TOS is S or W.

Business Rules

Rule 1: When (NON-COMPLEX) REQ TYP is E or M / ACT is T this field is used to indicate the MAIN ACCOUNT NUMBER for the service at the NEW LOCATION. This field does not have to match the existing account number shown on the current Customer Service Record (CSR).

Rule 2: When the ATN is changing (ATN differs from existing account number), a DL page is required for any additional listings that include the existing account number (including foreign listings, alternate calls, etc.).

Rule 3: When the REQ TYP is J and the ACT is R, and the EATN field is populated, the EATN and ATN fields cannot match.

Rule 4: When the REQ TYP is E (Non-Complex) or M (Switched Combination RES/BUS) with ACT of C and the request is changing from business to residence the existing main account telephone number must change in all states except Florida and North Carolina.

Rule 5: When the REQ TYP is E (Non-Complex) or M (Switched Combination RES/BUS) with ACT of C and the request is to change from a business class of service to a residence class of service and the request is being generated for order activity in the state of North Carolina, the existing main account telephone number must change only when the following conditions occur: YPH data on the existing CSR is anything other than 999001 Listing Instruction Code (LIC) data on the existing CSR is anything other than LNR.

Rule 6: For REQ TYP J, with ACT of D, when this field is populated the class of service on the Customer Service Record (CSR) must be LNPBL, or LNPRL.

Rule 7: When REQ TYP = J and ACT = V or W, the ATN must match the EATN.

Manual

Rule 8: When REQ TYP is E or M (Non-Complex) and ACT is C or V and LNA is G, V, or X and the main account number is changing, the ATN field is populated with the new MAIN ACCOUNT TELEPHONE NUMBER.

Rule 9: When a Wireless Type 1 Provider requests a Port In on a REQ TYP C, NPT = D, and the NPDI is populated, the ATN will be the Wireless Type 1 Provider's 10 digit account number where the Port In number will migrate.

Rule 10: When a request is received for REQ TYP J ACT N and a live account is found, where the first ten digits of the Account Telephone Number exactly match the data in the ATN Field, and the existing class of service is not LNPBL or LNPRL, the request will be returned to the originator as invalid.

Rule 11: When a request is received for REQ TYP J ACT N and a live account is found, where the first ten digits of the Account Telephone Number exactly match the data in the ATN Field, and the existing class of service is LNPBL or LNPRL and the originator of the request owns the existing account the request will be returned to the originator as invalid.

Rule 12: When a request is received for REQ TYP J, ACT N and a live account is found, where the first ten digits of the Account Telephone Number exactly match the data in the ATN Field, and the existing class of service is LNPBL or LNPRL and the originator of the request does not own the account, BellSouth will disconnect the old listing account and establish a new listing account.

Electronic

Rule 13: When the ATN and NATN fields are both populated, the ATN and NATN fields must contain different Telephone Numbers.

***** End of definition for field ATN *****



Attachment
SN91086022

ELMS6NAN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **V** only**REQTYP E (ACT = V)****ACT Tables: Reqtvp E, Coin****ACT= V: LSR****Required**

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	MI
PG_OF_ (M)	PON	REQTYP
SC	TOS	

Conditional

AN (M)	ATN	CUST (E)
LOCQTY	NOR	PROJECT
RCC (E)	RPON	SUP
VER	NAN (E)	

Optional

APPTIME-DDD	CNO	DDDO
EXP	LSCP	NAN (E)
NATN (E)	REMARKS	VTA

NAN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **V** only

ACT Tables: Reqtyp E, Resale, non-complex

ACT= V: LSR

Required

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	MI
PG_OF_ (M)	PON	REQTYP
SC	TOS	

Conditional

ALT-IMPCON-TEL NO.	AN (M)	ATN
CUST (E)	LOCQTY	NOR
PROJECT	RCC (E)	RPON
SUP	VER	NAN (E)

Optional

ALT-IMPCON*	APPTIME-DDD	CNO
EXP	HTQTY	LSCP
NAN (E)	NATN (E)	REMARKS
RORD	VTA	

ELMS6**REQTYP M (ACT = V)**NAN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **V** only**ACT Tables: Reqtvp M, UNE-P/WLP Coin****ACT= V: LSR****Required**

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	MI
PG_OF_ (M)	PON	PORTTYP
REQTYP	SC	TOS

Conditional

AN (M)	ATN	CUST (E)
LOCQTY	NOR	PROJECT
RCC (E)	RPON	SUP
VER	NAN (E)	

Optional

APPTIME-DDD	CNO	EXP
LSCP	NAN (E)	NATN (E)
REMARKS	VTA	

NAN(E) field from O (optional) to C(conditional) for ACT = **V** only

ACT Tables: Reqtyp M, UNE-P/WLP Bus/Res (Switched Combo Bus/Res)

ACT= V: LSR

Required

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA (E)	D/TSENT	DDD
IMPCON	IMPCON-TEL NO.	INIT
INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.	MI
PG_OF_ (M)	PON	PORTTYP
REQTYP	SC	TOS

Conditional

ALT-IMPCON-TEL NO.	AN	ATN
CUST (E)	LOCQTY	MEU (M)
NOR	PROJECT	RCC (E)
RPON	SUP	VER

NAN (E)

Optional

ALT-IMPCON*	APPTIME-DDD	CIC (E)
CNO	EXP	HTQTY
LSCP	<u>NAN (E)</u>	NATN (E)
REMARKS	RORD	VTA (M)

ELMS6

NAN

New Account Number (LSR Page)

Definition

Identifies the new account number.

Definition Notes

Electronic

Note 1: This field is used to assign a new main account number when the existing main account telephone number on the "from" account is being migrated **or disconnected**.

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

Electronic

Note 1: The number populated in this field must be a valid telephone number.

Note 2: When this field is populated, the number must be a working Telephone Number already existing on the migrating from account.

Data Characteristics

10 numeric characters

Examples

2055551234

Conditional Usage Notes

Electronic

Note 1: ACT V, MI = A or B, NAN field is required when the number populated in the EATN field (existing main account telephone) is migrating to another account or disconnected in conjunction with request.

Deleted: None||

Business Rules

Electronic

Rule 1: When this field is populated the EATN field must also be populated.

Rule 2: When NAN is populated, the number populated in the EATN field must be migrating to another account or disconnected in conjunction with the migration request.

Rule 3: **Rule 3** This field is for LSRs submitted electronically.

Rule 4: For REQ TYP E (Non-Complex) or M (Non-Complex) when this field is populated, the MI field must be populated with A or B.

ELMS6**EATN**

Existing Account Telephone Number
EU Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the End User's existing account telephone number assigned by the current NSP. It is a dialable telephone number.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data CharacteristicsElectronic

10 numeric characters

Manual

10 numeric characters (excluding 2 optional hyphens)

ExamplesElectronic

2015552000

Manual

2105555200

210-555-5200

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Prohibited when EAN, LEAN or LEATN is populated.

Note 2: Required when the LEAN, LEATN or EAN are not populated and ACT is V.

Note 3: Required when the EAN is not populated, and request is to change the telephone number(s) published in the Directory when no provisioning required [REQTYP=J/ACT=R].

Note 4: Required when REQTYP is A and ACT is V, conversion from dial tone to EELs.

Note 5: Required when the REQTYP is N and the ACT is V and the EAN field is not populated.

Note 6: Prohibited when ACT = N.

Note 7: When a Wireless Type 1 Provider requests a Port In on a REQTYP C, NPT is D, EATN must not be populated.

Electronic

Note 8: [BULK Option 1] For REQTYP B UNE to UNE Bulk, EATN is required once per Non-Complex UNE-P account to be migrated.

Note 9: [BULK Option 1] For LSRs with a BOPI, all TNs associated with an EATN must be Porting.

Note 10: [BULK Option 1] For Individual SUP LSRs with a BOPI, SUP 02 and 03 must be submitted on the individual LSR associated with the specified EATN.

Note 11: [BULK Option1] For UNE to UNE BULK requests, NAME EU will be Required per each EATN.

Note 12: [BULK Option 1] For UNE to UNE BULK requests, a unique PON# is Required per each EATN.

Note 13: Required when the NATN field on the LSR is populated and the ACT=V.

Note 14: Prohibited when the NATN field is populated and the ACT=C.

Note 15: Required when the NAN field is populated.

Deleted: and/or NAN

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Font color: Red, Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Font color: Red, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Font color: Red

Business Rules

Rule 1: When porting type 1 wireless numbers, for WLNP LSRs, the EATN and the PORTED TN values must not be the same.

Rule 2: When the request is REQTYPE E (Non-Complex) or M (Switched Combination RES/BUS) with ACT of V and the request is to migrate and change the class of service from business to residence the EATN field must not match the ATN field.

Rule 3: LEATN, LEAN, EAN and EATN are mutually exclusive and may not appear in any combination on the LSR request.

Rule 4: When REQTYPE = J and ACT = V or W, the EATN must match the ATN.

Electronic

Rule 5: When NAN is populated, the number populated in the EATN field must be migrating to another account or disconnected in conjunction with the migration request.

Formatted: Highlight

***** End of definition for field EATN *****

ELMS6

MI

Migration Indicator
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG6 / ELMS6

Definition

Identifies the type of account level activity when lines/numbers are converting from one LSP to another LSP.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

- A = Partial migration converting lines/numbers to a new account
- B = Partial migration converting lines/numbers to an existing account
- C = Full migration converting lines/numbers to a new account
- D = Full migration converting lines/numbers to an existing account

Valid Entry Notes

Note 1: When REQ TYP = J and ACT = V, MI must be C.

Electronic

Note 2: When the valid entry is A or B there must be at least one line remaining (not migrating) on the existing CSR.

Note 3: When the valid entry is "C" or "D" all lines must either migrate, or be disconnected, there must not be any lines remaining on the existing CSR.

Note 4: For the following products the only valid entries for this field are C or D: Digital Data Designed (DS1), NON-Designed UCL-ND, EELs, Line Share, DID.

Note 5: For a Wireless Type 1 Port, the MI field valid values must be A or B.

Note 6: When the ACT is V and the LSR request is changing from a residence to a business class of service, or from a business class of service to a residence class of service the only valid value in this field is C.

Note 7: When the REQ TYP is N with ACT=V and AD=A, the MI must be B.

Note 8: MI field must be A or B when the ACT is V and the NAN field is populated.

Manual

Note ~~8~~ 9: Valid entries of "A" and "B" are prohibited when the MEU field is populated and the request is for a UNE-P/WLP Complex PBX ON/OFF Premise extension/DPA.

Note ~~9~~ 10: When A or B is populated in this field and the REQ TYP N, the LSR must be submitted manually.

Note ~~10~~ 11: Valid entries for LNP to Resale UNE-P/WLP Migration Request (REQ TYP E or M), (SC=LCSL) are A, B, C or D

Data Characteristics

1 alpha character

Examples

A



Attachment
SN91086022

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the ACT is V.

Note 2: Prohibited when the ACT is W.

Manual

Note 3: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is M and the TOS is 1DM-, 1EM or 1HM.

Note 4: Prohibited with REQ TYP E for Frame Relay, SMARTRing and LightGate.

Note 5: Prohibited with REQ TYP K.